AO 106 (Rev. 04/10) Application for a Search Warrant

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

for the
Eastern District of Arkansas

In the Matter of the Search of

(Briefly describe the property 1o be searched
or identify the person by name and address)

Case No. 4:24sw00062 JJV

Residence located at
(SUBJECT PROPERTY)

N N N e e Nt

APPLICATION FOR A SEARCH WARRANT

1, a federal law enforcement officer or an attorney for the government, request a search warrant and state under
penalty of perjury that [ have reason to believe that on the following person or property (identify the person or describe the

pngpe ”}\{?ac %cgﬁlgeg {md give its location):

located in the Eastern District of ; Arkansasb , there is now concealed (identify the

person or describe the property to be seized).

See Attachment B

The basis for the search under Fed. R. Crim. P. 41(c) is (check one or more):
W( evidence of a crime;
Mcontraband, fruits of crime, or other items illegally possessed;
f?(property designed for use, intended for use, or used in committing a crime;
(7 a person to be arrested or a person who is unlawfully restrained.

The search is related to a violation of:

. Code Section Offense Description
18 U.S.C. Sec. 922(a)(1)(A) dealing in firearms without a license
18 U.S.C. Sec. 921(a)(6) unlawful acquisition of a firearm

The application is based on these facts:
Please see attached affidavit

& Continued on the attached sheet.
( Delayed notice of ____ days (give exact ending date if more than 30 days: ) isrequested
under 18 U.S.C. § 3103a, the basis of which is set forth on the attac
b Bula 4
osued by telephone pursuat o Rule & Tand 410)3)

I

of the Federal Rules of Criis s{f‘;oceﬁué

Printed name and iitle

Sworn to before me and signed in my presence.

Date:  03/06/2024 f\

\J Judge's signature
Little Rock, Arkansas : ’ Volpe, United States Magistrate Judge

Printed name and title

City and state:




AQ 106 (Rev. 04/10) Application for a Séarch Warrant

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

for the

Eastern District of Arkansas

In the Matter of the Search of

(Briefly describe the property to be searched
or identifv the person by name and address)

a white 2022 Toyota Highlander with VIN number
STDDZRBHINS161319 (SUBJECT VEHICLE)

N N N N M e

Case No. 4:24sw00063 JJV

APPLICATION FOR A SEARCH WARRANT

1, a federal law enforcement officer or an attorney for the governme
penalty of perjury that I have reason to believe that on the following person

prgléegl)iigabélsﬁ%ﬁ}{eﬁ' éma7 give its location):

located in the Eastern District of

Arkansas

person or describe the properfy to be seized):
See Attachment B

The basis for the search under Fed. R. Crim. P. 41(c) is fcheck one or more):

(!revidence of a crime;

o contraband, fruits of crime, or other items illegally possessed:
[i(propcrty designed for use, intended for use, or used in committing a crime;
¥ a person to be arrested or a person who is unlawfully restrained.

The search is related to a violation of:

Code Section
18 U.S.C. Sec. 922(a)(1)(A)
18 U.S.C. Sec. 921(a)(6)

The application is based on these facts:
Please see attached affidavit

EZr Continued on the attached sheet.
O Delayed notice of _

A1ie)3)

days (give exact ending date if more than 30 days:

Offense Description

dealing in firearms without a license
unlawful acquisition of a firearm

under 18 U.S.C. § 31033, the 3357 éj{ which is set forth on the attacl

tssued by telephone pursuant fo Rule 4 Tane

ﬂ'j“p E ','"‘?-’ AR : ',‘ ’ ‘;\1 i ~ 5 an =
of the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure

i

-3

Sworn to before me and signed in my presence.

Date: 03/06/2024

City and state: Little Rock, Arkansas

LAPPRILEI D Digliets

ATF Special Agent

, there is now concealed fidentif the

) is requested

ni, request a search warrant and state under
Or property (identify the person or describe the

Printed name and title

A —

‘ ’ /'Judge 's signature -
J f Volpe, United States Magistrate Judge

Printed name and iitle



IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF ARKANSAS

IN THE MATTER OF THE SEARCH OF THE
RESIDENCE LOCATED AT Case No. 4:24sw00062 JJV
‘ 4:24sw00063 JJV

(SUBJECT PROPERTY) and A WHITE 2022
TOYOTA HIGHLANDER, WITH VEHICLE -[Filed Under Seal
IDENTIFICATION NUMBER (VIN)

5TDDZRBHINS161319, (SUBJECT
VEHICLE) ‘

AFFIDAVIT IN SUPPORT OF ‘
AN APPLICATION FOR A SEARCH WARRANT

I,— being first duly sworn, hereby depose and state as follows:

INTRODUCTION AND AGENT BACKGROUND

1 Your Afﬁant,-is an investigative or law enforcement officer of the '

United States, within the meaning of Title 18, United States Code (USC) Section 2510(7) and is
empowered by law to conduct investigation of and to make arrests for offenses enumerated in Title

18, United States Code (USC) Section2516. Your Affiant is a Special Agent (S/A) of the Bureau

of Alcohol, Tobacco, Firearms and Explosives (ATF), assigned to the Little Rock Field Office.




3. In your Affiant’s law enforcement employment, your Affiant has authored and

conducted numerous analyses of telephones and telephone billing records, including those used by
subjects involved in possession of firearms. Your Affiant has taken over 200+ hours of cellular
data training courses from 2018-2023. Your Aﬁiant has taken additional training courses covering
the topics of cellular data from providers, cellular data stored on a cellular device, and other data
held on cellular devices associated with other electronics. Your Affiant has participated in the
execution of search warrants, including search warrants for contents from electronic devices such
as cellular telephones and portable electronic storage devices. Consequently, your Affiant is
familiar with the ways in which persons who are engaged in the business of dealing firearms
without a license use cellular telephones to facilitate, promote, and memorialize their illegal
activities. Your Affiant knows that persons who engage in the business of dealing firearms without
a license, often take pictures and videos of their illegal activity and maintain those pictures and
videos on their phones. Furthermore, based upon your Affiant’s training and experience, persons

who are engaged in the business of dealing firearms without a license, often take photographs and



videos of firearms, firearm parts and accessories, and other contraband in their possession using
their cellular telephones and subsequently post such photographs and videos on social media,
including on Facebook and Snapchat, using their cellular telephones. Your Affiant knows
CashApp, PayPal, Zelle, and similar online monetary transaction accounts, are digital applications
commonly used via cellulér phones to purchase or pay for both legal and contraband items, such
as firearms by prohibited persons.

4. Additionally, based upon your Affiant’s training and eXperience, your Affiant
knows that persons who engage in the business of dealing firearms without a license, often utilize
cellular telephones to facilitate the purchase of, transportation of, and/or distribution of the
firearms. They frequently use cellular phones to send and receive phone calls, text messages, and
voice imaﬂs to and from their source(s) of supply and their customers. They store contact
information, e.g. phone numbers and addresses, for their source(s) of supply and customers in their
cellular phones. Your Affiant knows persons who are engaged in the business of dealing firearms
without a license use cellular telephones to take/receive photographs of firearms. Persons who are
engaged in the business of dealing firearms without a license use cellular telephones to take
photographs of the proceeds of their firearm and firearm dealing activities. Thus, cellular
telephones frequently contain names, text messagés, voice mail messages, photographs, videos,
and contact numbers for/of others involved in the business of dealing of firearms. Your Affiant
knows cellular telephones will retain text messages, contact lists, phone call information, and
photographs until manually deleted or deleted according to the cellular phone’s settings; '

5. Your Affiant has also been involved in various types of electronic surveillance and
in the debriefing of defendants, wiﬁesses, informants, and others who have knowledge of firearms

violations. Your Affiant has participated in investigations resulting in the arrest of prbhibited



persons in possession of firearms, firearms trafﬁéking suspects, and in the seizure of numerous
unlawfully possessed firearms. Your Affiant has participated in investigations involving the use
of video surveillance. Your Affiant is familiar with the manner in which pérséns who are engaged
in the business of dealing firearms without a license, including but not limited to: their methods of
unlawfully acquiring and distributing firearms, use of telecommunication devices to include
electronic mail, land line telephones, cellbular telephones, and has been trained on the use of counter
surveillance techniques, and use of numerical codes and coded and/or cryptic 1aﬁguage, words,
and references to conduct their transactions.

6. Your Affiant knows that Title 18 U.S.C. Section 922(a)(6), of the Gun Control Act
(GCA), makes it unlawful for any person in connection with the acquisition or attempted
acquisition of any firearm or ammunition from a licensed importer, licensed manufacturer,
licensed dealer, or licensed collector, knowingly to make any false or fictitious oral or written
statement or to furnish or exhibit any false, fictitious, or misreprésented identiﬁcation, intended or
likely to deceive such importer, manufacturer, dealer, or collector with respect to any fact material
to the lawfulness of the sale or other disposition of such firearm or ammunition.

7. Your Affiant knows that Title 18 U.S.C. Section 922(a)(1)(A), of the GCA, it is
unlawful for any person except a licensed dealer, to engage in the business of importing,
manufacturing, or dealing in firearms, or in the course of such business to ship, transport, or receive
any firearm in interstate or foreign commerce.

8. Your Affiant knows that the term “firearm”, as defined in Title 18 U.S.C. Section
921(a)(3)(A) of the GCA, means any weapon (including a starter gun) which will or is designed to or
may readily be converted to expel a projectile by the action of an explosives; or (B) the frame or

receiver of any such weapon; or (C) any firearm muffler or firearm silencer; or (D) any destructive



device.

9. Your Affiant knows the term “dealer”, as defined in Title 18 USC 921(a)(11) of the
GCA, means (A) any person engaged in the business of selling firearms at wholesale or retail; or (B)
any person engaged in the business of repairing firearms or of making or fitting special barrels, stocks,
or trigger mechanisms to firearms; or (C) any person who is a pawnbroker.

10. Your Affiant knows the term “engaged in the business”, as defined in Title 18 USC
921(a)(21)(C) of the GCA, as applied to a dealer in firearms, as defined in 921(a)(11)(A), a person
who devotes time, attention, and labor to dealing in firearms as a regu]_ar course of trade or business
to predominately earn a profit through the repetitive purchase and resale of firearms, but such term
shall not include a person who makes occasional sales, exchanges, or purchases of firearms for the
enhancement of a personal collection or for a hobby, or who sells all or part of his personal collection
of firearms.

11.  Your Affiant knows the term “to predominately earn a profit”, as defined in Title 18
USC 921(a)(22) of the GCA, means that the intent underlying the sale or disposition of firearms is
predominately one of obtaining pecuniary gaixi, as opposed to other intents, such as improving or
liquidating a personal firearms collection: Provided, that proof of profit shall not be required as to a
person who engages in the regular and repetitive purchase and disposition of firearms for criminal
purposes or terrorism.

12. The information in this Affidavit is based on your Affiant’s personal observations;
information received from outside sources; information received from cooperating witnesses;
review of recordings and text messages; review of records and law enforcement databases; records
of the purchase of firearms, ﬁrearms parts and accessories; information re‘ceived from other law

enforcement agents; your Affiant’s experience and training; and the experience of other agents and



law enforcement officers. Because of this Affidavit’s limited purpose, it does not contain all of
the facts known to your Affiant or other law enforcement officers about the investigation.
Additionally, the conversations summarized and transcribed below do not necessarily represent
the entirety of the conversation, but rather the essential parts that support probable cause. This
affidavit is intended to show merely that there is sufficient probable cause for the requested warrant

and does not set forth all of your Affiant’s knowledge about this matter.

13.  Based on your Affiant’s tréining and experience and the facts as set forth in this
affidavit, there is probable cause to believe that violations of Title 18, United States Code §§
922(a)(1)(A) and 922(a)(6), have been committed by Bryan Keith MALINOWSKI (hereafter
referred to as MALINOWSKI). There is also probable cause to search the property described in
Attachment A for evidence, instrumentalities, and/or fruits of these crimes ﬁnthér described in
Attachment B. This affidavit is made in support of a search warrant for the residence, electronic
devices, including cell phones, and any storage safes, as further described in Attachment Al aﬁd
B (the “SUBJECT PROPERTY?), as well as a white 2022 Toyota Highlander, with vehicle
identification number (VIN) STDDZRBHINS161319 (the “SUBJECT VEHICLE™), as further
descri‘bed in Attachment A2 and B.

JURISDICTION

14.  This Court has jurisdiction to issue the requested warrant because it is “a court of
competent jurisdiction” as defined by Title 18, United States Code, Sections 2711, and Title 18,
United Statc_:s Code, Sections 2703(a), (b)(1)(A), & (c)(1)(A). Specifically, the Court is “a district
court of the United States . . . that has jurisdiction over the offénse being investigated” as outlined '

in Title 18, United States Code, Section 2711(3)(A)(D).



PROBABLE CAUSE

15. By way of background, ATF works in conjunction with various law enforcement
agencies within fhe United States (U.S.) by tracing the acquisition and disposition of firearms
recovered there that are sourced in the U.S. ATF also assists bordering foreign countries, Canada
and Mexico, in investigating firearm-related crimes where recovered firearms have an origin or
similar nexus to the U.S. The cooperation between thése countries and ATF in the U.S. is intended
to combat violent firearm-related crimes that cross each country’s border. ATF further employs
individuals, including liaison/attaché and intelligence personnel, who are stationed in these
respective foreign countries. |

16.  ATF further utilizes personnel assigned to regional Crime Gun Intelligence Centers
(CGIC) in its US-based field divisions, as well as in its Office of Strategic Intelligence and
Information (OSII), who assist in detecting and investigating potential firearms trafficking
schemes. Much of the intelligence used in investigating firearm trafficking schemes revolves
around data accessed through ATF’s National Tracing Center (NTC). \Vhen a firearm is recovered
by a law enforcement agency, both inside the U.S. as well as Canada and Mexico, a trace request
may be submitted té the NTC by the recovering and/or related investigating agency. To initiate a
trace, information including the firearm description (to include type, make, manufacturer, model,
and caliber), recovery location/information, and any potential involved persons, is requested of .the
submitter. NTC utilizes.information obtained froﬁl federal firearms licensees (FFLs) who are
licensed by ATF to enga’gé in various aspects of firearm-related commerce, which may include
activities such as manufacturing, importing, ‘acquiring, and/or disposing of firearms lawfully
within the confines of the National Firearms Act (NFA) and GCA, amongst other potential states.

17.  For an individual to purchase a fircarm(s), they must appear in person at the



premises or authorized alternate location of an FFL. Upon presenting valid government-issued
photo identification, verified by the FFL or an employee/designee, the individual purchaser
(transferee/buyer), in conjunction with the FFL (transferor/seller) must complete an ATF Form

4473, Firearms Transaction Record.

18.  The current version of the ATF Form 4473 was most recently updated in May 2020.
The information that follows is based off the May 2020 format and layout of the ATF Form 4473.
At the top of page 1 of the 6-page Form 4473, a warning appears regarding unlawﬁﬂ transactions.

An excerpt of the top page 1 of the form warning appears below:

OMB No. 1140-0620

TU.S. Departinent of Justice
Bureau of Alcohol, Tobdcco, Firearms and Explosives FH‘ eairms Transaction Recor d

Transteror's/iSeller’s
‘Transaction Serial
1y}

VARNING: The mionmmtion you provide will be tsed 1o defennme whe! eryou ate pi mied by Federal or State law from recerving
afivean, Certain viclations of the Gua Conirol Act, 18 U8.C, 921 et.'seq,, ave pumishable by up to 10°vears mprisonment and/orup toa
$250.000 fine. Auy persori who expoits a firearm Without a proper atithorization from eithet fhe Departinent of Conmmerce of the | Number (i
Departivientt of State, ds applicable, is subject to a fine of ot more than 1,000,900 and up to 20 vears injprisonsiiest.

Read fhe Notices, Fastructions, and Definitions on fhis form. Prepare in original only at the censed premises (including business
temporarity conducted from  qualifying gun show or event inthe saue State inwhich the prensises is located) unless the transaction
qualifiesunder 18 US.C. 922(z). All entries st be handvweritten in ink iless completed under ATE Rul 2016-2. PLEASE PRINT.

The warning cautions that the information provided is used to determine if the purchaser is
prohibited from receiving firearm(s), and explicitly reads, “Any person who exports a firearm
without a proper authorization from either the Department of Commerce or the Department of

State, as applicable is subjecf to a fine of not more than $1,00,000 and up to 20 years

imprisonment.”



19.  In Section A of the 4473, firearm(s) description information must be recorded by

the FFL (transferor/seller). Section A of page 1 is excerpted below:

Section A - Must Be Completed By Transfero1/Seller Before Transferee/Buyer Complétes Section B
= .

k 2 3 4. 5
Manufacturer and Tinpoiter (if any) Model Serial Number Type Caliber or
(If the manufactirer and imposter are (if designated) Gauge
différent, inciude both.)

heck if any part of tis transaction &5 & pav#n redemption, :j

6. Total Number of Firearms to be Transferred (Please speli total number e.g., A
one, twe, etc. Do not uise numerals.) ) Record Line Number(s) From Question 11,

8. Check if this fransaction is to facilitate a private party transfer. D

20.  In Section B (on page 1), the form is required to be completed by the purchaser
(transferee/buyer). It requires the purchaser’s identifying and demographic information be

provided as reflected in the excerpt below:

Section B - Must Be Completed Personally By Trausteree/Buver
2 Tmmferee *Buyer s Full Name (If]eeal iR cmnams an inittal oy, record the initial followsd by “10™ iir quotes. Ifuo middle initial or name. record “NMN™)

Middie Name

H Place of Bﬂ’ﬂl
3. City and State

17. Unique Pexsonal IdennﬁcauonNmibel (UPIN) or
Database Identification (AMD ID) (if applicable)

186 Race (Seiect one or more race in 18.b. Both 18.a. and 18.b. nmst be answered.)
American Indxzm or Alaska Native [:] Black or African American White
Asian, Native Hawailan or Other Pacific Islander

Not Hispanic or Latino
19. Comatry of Citizenship: (Check/List more than one, if applicable. Nationals of the United States may check U.S.A)
United States of America (U.S:A) . Orh:r Country/ ‘Countles {Specifyy:
20. fyon are an alien, record vour U.S S -issued alien or admission number (AR¥, USC iS# or D4#) ;

21.  Section B also requires the purchaser respond to a series of “Yes” or “No” questions
under 21a-21k. These questions are used by the transferor to determine if the purchaser is
prohibited from possessing/receiving firearm(s). Question 21 is split between pages 1 and 2, as

depicted below:



71. Answer the following questions by chiecking or marking either the “ves” or “no” box to the night of the questions: Yes | No

2. Are vou the actual transferce/buyer of fie firearm(s) Hsted on this form and any continuation sheet(s) (ATF Form 5300.94)7
Waining: Yoi ave not the actual téansferee/buyer if you are acquiring the fivearin(s) on behalf of another person. If yon are .
not the actual fransferee/buyer, the licensee cannot transfer the firearmys) to you. Exception: If you are only picking up a repaired BB
firearm(s} for anofher person, youass fof reduired 6 auswer 21.a. and may procéed to question 21.b.

b, Are vou under indictment or information inany court for a felony, or apy other crime foi which the judge could imprison you for more
than one year, or are you a current member of the milifary who has been charged with violation(s) of the Uniform Code of Military
Tusnce and witose charge(s) have been referred toa general cmut-lmmal ?

¢ Have yourever been convicted inany court, inchiding a mzhtan cout, of a felony, or aity other criine for which the judge could have
imprisened you for tiore than one year, evén if yon recefved a shorter sentence including probation?

d Areyoua f\xe:m"e from justice?

& Ate vou an unlawha userof, or addicted to, marijnang of any depressant, stintlant, barcotic drag, or any other controlled substance?
Warning: The use or possession of marijuans remains uatawful under Federal law regardiessof whether it has been legalized or decriminafized | [£]
for medicinal or secreational pusposes in the state” where vou reside.

Previous Editions Are Obsolete ATF Form 4473 (5300.9)

Page1of6 STAPLE IF PAGES BECOME SEPARATED Resised May 2020

T Have you ever been adjudicated as a mental defective-OR have you ever begn conunitted fo a-mental nstitution?

Have you ever been discharged from the Avmed Forces under dishonorable conditions?

. Afe you subject fo a court order, including a Military Profection Order issued by a military judge or magistiate, restraining you from
harassing, stalking, or threatening your child'or an-intimate partaer or child of such :partner?

i Have you ever been convicted in any court of a isdemeanar crime of domestic violence, or are you.or - have you ever been a member of

the military aivd beési’convicted of a erime that included, as an element, the use of force against a persen as identified in the instructions?

0%

j- Haveyowever renounced your United States citizenship?

k Are you an alien lilegally of anlawhilly in the United Statés?

2111 Are youan alién who has been dduitted to the United States tnder & ucmmmugmn Yisa?

2112, Kyouare such an alien do you fall within any of the exceptions stated in the instructions? (U.S. citizens/nationals leave 2112 blani\)

22.  Question 21.1. speciﬁcally asks, “Are you the actual transferee/buyer of the

2

firearm(s) listed on this form and any continuation sh¢et(s)... In bold font, it continues,
‘;Wanling: You are not the actual transferee/buyer if you are acquiring the firearm(s) on behalf of
another person. If you are not the actual transferee/buyer, the licensee cannot transfer the
firearm(s) to you.”

23.  Between questions 21 and the certification portion of question 22, the following

statement appears:

I certify that my answers in Section B are frue, correct; and complete. Thave read and inderstand the Nonces, Tustructions, and Definitions onATF Form
4473. Tunderstand that answering “ves” to question 21.8. i 1 am not the actual {ransferee/buyetis a erime punishable as a felony under Federal Iaw,

and may also violate Stite and/or local lasy. 1 nnderstand that a person who ansivers “yes” to any of the guestions 21.b, througlhi 21.k. is prohibited from
receiving or possessing a firesrm. 1 muderstand fhiat a person who answers “ves” to guestion 21.1.1. is prohibited from receiving or possessing a firesam,
unless the person answers “yes” to question 21.12. and provides the decumentation required in 26.4. ¥ also anderstand that maling any fase oral or
written stateinent, or exhibifing any false or mlsxeplesented identification with respect fo this transaction, is a crime punishable as a felony under Federal
iaw, and may also vielate Stafe and/or local law. I further understand that the repetitive purchase of fivearms for the purpose of vesale for tivelihood and
profit withent a Fedel al firesrms license is a viclatioi of Federal law. -

C ex tification Date

10



24.  The certification statement cautions specifically, “I understand that answering “yes” to
question 21.a. if T am not the actual transferee/buyer is a crime punishable as a felony under Federal law,
and may also violate State and/or local law.” It also warns, “I also understand that making any false oral
or written statement, or exhibiting any false or misrepresented identification with respect to this
transaction, is. a crime punishable as a félony under Federal law, and may also violate State and/or local
law.” It continues, I further understand that the repetitive purchase of firearms for the purpose of resale
fpr livelihood and pi‘oﬁt without a Federal firearms license is a violation Federal law.”

25.  The Background check portion of the form is documented by the FFL in Section C of pages
2-3. Unless the purchaser has a valid concealed carry weapon permit accepted in the state of purchase, the
FFL is required to initiate a National Instant Check System (NICS) check with the Federal Bureau of
Investigation (FBI) to determine if the person has any prohibiting factors that would preclude them from
lawfully possessing or receiving firearm(s). When a NICS check is initiated by an FFL, NICS provides a
unique identifier consisting of letters and numerals, which is referred to as a NICS transaction number.
NICS also typically gives one (1) of the following responses: proceed, delayed, or denied. On a proceeded
transaction, the firearm(s) can be transferred to the purchaser immediately; the opposite occurs with a
denied transaction and no transfer is permitted. Delayed transactions may require additional time to
research and may still result in a proceed or denied. It is possible that an inconclusive or untimely “no
response” from NICS results, and it is possible for a firearm to be transferred lawfully by an FFL

while in a “delayed” status. Section C is excerpted below:

11



-Bection € - Musi Be Cmnpiﬁed By Trmxsiem: #Sofler Prior To The Transﬁer O{ 'ﬂ}e Fmemm{s)
24. Category of fireanm(s) fo e transtersed (chieck o pnick alf that apjﬂy} '

B anggun [ Long Gun
(rifieor

27.a. Daie the transferee’s/buyer s identifying infornmtion i Section B was
{ransndtted fo KECS or the agpmpﬂ:m: State agency:

28, . No NICS check 1s .ra‘qa't’m& becanse a backgronnd check was completed dusing tha NFA approval process on the individual who will receive
the IFA firearm{s}, as reflected onthe approved NFA dpplication.

ATF Ferm $473 (3300.3)
PageZof§ STAPLE IF PAGES BECOME SEPARATED Feviced May 2020

28 o NICS check is reqmrcd because fhe imnsferee/buyes has a valid permit from The State where ﬁ)e transter ©s to fake place, which quzixﬁm
L asan umtpnon to NICS.

12



26.  Page 3 further contains an option Section D re-certification by the purchaser that is only

completed if the firearm(s) transfer takes place on a date different than the purchaser signed Section B.

27.  Page 3 also includes Section E, which must be completedvby the FFL. It contains a block
in item 32 entitled “for use by Licensee” and contains a blank optional field. Item 33 is a required block
with space for the name ' of the FFL and business premises address to be documented, as well as
documentation of the abridged FFL number (requiring the first 3 and last 5 numerals in the FFL nﬁmber).
The first 3 numbers correspond to a state and region, for example, for FFLs located within the State of
Arkansas, the first 3 numerals are 5-71. The last 5 numerals are unique to the individual FFL. The first 3
and last 5 numerals of the FFL number generally do not change as long as the license remains valid and
issued to the same entity, so they are commonly used within the firearms industry and within ATF without
inclusion of the county codes, 1i(;ense type, and expiration year and month codes that fall between the first
3 and last 5 numerals. |

28. Section E on page 3 further contains the following certification section to be completed

by the FFL.

The Individual Transferving The Firearm{s) Must Complete uestians 34-36.
For Dened/Cancelledl Transactions, The Individual Who Completed Secdon C Must Complete Questions 34-35.

Toerfify fhat: (131 have read ond understand the Notices, Instructions. and Definifions o this ATF Form 4473; (2) the informatian recorded in Sections A, Cand E

5 trize; correct; and complete; and {3) this entive ransaction veéord] ias been completed at fio Beensed business premises {Flicensed premises” includes business

temporarily conducted fromm 4 qualifying gun shev or evenif bi'the same St in which the essisedt pietmuises is locaved) unless fiis transacton has met the

requvements of 18 TS.C. 022(c). Unless this transaction Has beenr denied or cancelled by NICS or State sisicy, ¥ further certify-om the basis of — (1) the

tranisferee’sbiiyer’s tespunses fn Seetion B {and Secfion D, i applicable); (2) the verification of the idenfification recarded in question 26 {and the re-verification at

fhie time of transfen if Section D was conipleted); and {3) State ot Tocal faw applicabli to the firenfins business—it & 1y belief that it is not mnlvwik for me to s,

deiver, eansport, or oiherwise dispose of the fresrtin(s) listed an fis form to the person identified in Section B.

34, Tramsferor =/5eller’s Name {please prnt) 35. Tramsferor's'Sefler’s Signatore 36. Date Transferred

29. By signing Section E, and completing questions 34-36, the dealer/transferor certifies (in
part) the fact that they have verified the identification of the purchaser. The remainder of pages 3-6 include

notices, instructions, definitions, and similar information to be used for reference.
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30.  In December 2023, ATF Industry Operations Investigator Specialist (101S) —
-referred an investigative lead to the ATF Little Rock Field Office for further review. 10IS -
identified information to suspicious activity. In November 2023, Cénada police officials received a
photograph of firearms by a confidential informant. The firearms were not known to have been recovered.
Some serial numbers were visible for the firearms, which were then submitted as an investigative trace
request. A trace request is completed by the National Tracing Center (NTC). During a trace request, NTC
attempts to identify the original purchaser of a firearm after the firearm leaves a manufacturer. Through
{hc trace, Bryan Keith MALINOWSKI— showed to be the purchaser for multiple

firearms. |
31.  The reports showed MALINOWSKI purchased approximately ninety-two (92) firearms
from November 2021 to December 2Q23. MALINOWSKI showed to be a resident of Little Rock,
Arkansas, in the Eastern District of Arkansas. Many of the firearms located in the Multiple Sale Summary
reports, showed MALINOWSKI was purchasing multiples of thé same manufacturer and model of
firearms.
32.  All the firearms from the reports were purchased from Federal Firearms Licensee (FFL)
—Nm’m Little Rock, Arkansas- The Multiple
Sale Summary repoﬁs firearms purchased by MALINOWSKI are as follows:
a. Approximately twenty-four (24) Glock, Model 45, pistols
b. Approximately nine (9) Fed Armv, Model FR-16, pistols
& Approximately nine (9) Beretta, Model 92A, pistols
d. Approximately seven (7) North American Arms, Model NA22, pistols
e Approximately four (4) Glock, Model 22, pistols
4 Approximately four (4) SAR, Model SARSY, pistols
g. Approximately three (3) ATI, Mﬁdel OMNI, pistols
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h: Approximately three (3) Glock, Model 19, pistols

1. Apprqximately three (3) Glock, Model 17, pistols

I Approximateiy three (3) Beretta, Model 92FS -

k. And multiple different handguns where he purchased two of the same mé.nufacturer‘
and model firearms.

33.  On December 15, 2023, your Affiant reviewed the above information and opened an
investigation into MALINOWSKI. MALINOWSKI’s address on his Arkansas Driver’s License showed
to be — (hereafter referred to as the SUBJECT
PROPERTY).

34.  OnDecember 19, 2023, your Affiant reviewed records at—The records
included ATF Form 4473, —provided records for all the ﬁrearms. purchased by

MALINOWSKI from them, which totaled approximately one hundred forty-two (142) firearms from 2019
to December 19, 2023. Each form included the address for MALINOWSKI to be the SUBJECT
PROPERTY.

35. © Anemployee of-tated MALINOWSKI usually purchases firearms from
gunbroker.com and has the firearms shipped to— The employee stated typically the
FSAAP, AR style pistols which MALINOWSKI buys, come directly from the manufacturer. Before
transferring to MALINOWSK, [ [ I v=s MALNOWSKI fil out ATF Form 4473 and
MALINOWSKI is charged $25.00 transfer fee. The‘employec provided information concerning current -
in stock firearms fhat were shipped to them and were awaiting transfer to MALINOWSKI. Two (2) of
the pending transfer firearms included invoices from gunbroker.com. Both invoices showed the firearms

billing was addressed to Bryan Malinowski at the SUBJECT PROPERTY, with phone number -

-and email address— The gunbroker.com buyer name on the account was
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36. A review of traces of recovered firearms from NTC where MALINOWSKI was listed as
the purchaser, showed three (3) firearms were recovered during the commission of a crime. The three (3)
- firearms are listed below:

a. — pistol, Serial Number - purchased by
MALINOWSKI on August 4, 2022. The firearm was recovered on May 12, 2023, V\;ith 281 days
TTC (Time to Crime - is the time from the original purchase date to the day the firearm was
recovered). —PD), conducted a traffic stop on a vehicle
where-was in possession of this and another firearm and suspected marijuana.

Also in the vehicle was another adult subject and a four-year-old child.

b. —pistol, Serial Number — purchased by
MALINOWSKI on August 11, 2022, D), conducted a traffic

stop where—was arrested for being in possession of suspected marijuana. During

the arrest, this and another firearm were located in the vehicle. The firearm was recovered on
February 20, 2023, with 193 days TTC.

c. —pisml, Serial Number—, purchased by
MALINOWSKI on April 20, 2022. -PD conducted a traffic stop on a vehicle where a subject
(hereafter referred to as W-1), was located in. During the stop, this firearm and suspected
marijuana was located near where W-1 was sitting inside of the vehicle. W-1 showed to have been .
convicted of Robbery in 2021. At the time the firearm was originally purchased by
MALINOWSKI and recovered from W-1, W-1 was already prohibited from purchasing or
péssessing a firearm. The firearm was recovered on-with 15 days TTC, from W-1.
37.  OnDecember 21, 2023, ATF S/A_viewed a photograph of MALINOWSKI

and recognized MALINOWSKI from a separate unrelated ATF investigatidn she was conducting. S/A

i (cnded a G&S Promotions gun show in Conway Arkansas on June 11, 2023. S/A [lobserved
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MALINOWSK]I, appearing to be an unlicensed individual, operating as a vendor at the guni show.
MALINOWSKI sold firearms to several subjects without asking for any identification or paperwork. At

the time, ATF -did not know MALINOWSKI’s identity. The photographs of the sell she witnessed

are below:

38.  On December 27, 2023, your Affiant conducted a recorded interview with W-l,-
_ W-1 provided a statement in summary:
a. ‘The firearm W-1 was arrested with by -PD (—pistol with

serial number_), was purchased by [l from a seller at a gun show in April/ May of

2022, at the Arkansas State Fairgrounds in Little Rock, Arkansas. —



b 'W-1 was shown a photographic line-up featuring MALINOWSKI and five (5) other
similar appearing individuals. W-1 positively identified MALINOWSKI, by his Arkansas
Driver’s License photograph.

c. W-1 went to MALINOWSKI’s booth at the gun show because . saw
MALINOWSKI working alone, make a sale to another unidentified subject without asking for
paperwork. At the gun show, MALINOWSKI had a single table witl'% approximately 12-13
firearms on the table. MALINOWSKI had older guns, handguns, and some rifles. W-1 asked
MALINOWSKI if he did any paperwork (documenting identifying information of the buyer or
documenting the sell). MALINOWSKI said no, so W-1 began buying firearms from him. On this
date at the gun show, W-1 only bought the -istol, from MALINOWSKI.

d. Through text messages starting from after the gun show to approximately June
2023, W-1 and MALINOWSKI exchanged numerous text messages about purchasing additional
firearms. W-1 would primarily reach out to MALINOWSKI but sometimes MALINOWSKI
would reach out to W-1 about new firearms MALINOWSKI had for sell. If there was é firearm
MALINOWSKI did not have in his inventory, he would try to get the firearm to sell to W-1.
MALINOWSKI offered to sell firearms to any of W-1’s friends, but W-1 never referred anyone
to MALINOWSKI for buying firearms.

e. W-1 made a total of three firearm purchases from MALINOWSKI between |
approximately -2022 to -2023. MALINOWSKI was willing to meet ,W_l anywhere
in a public place, so they conducted two purchases a business parking lot in Little Rock, Arkansas.
The only identifying question MALINOWSKI asked W-1 was if W-1 was over 18 years old. The
three purchases W-1 made from MALINOWSKI are described below:

o 0222022 W1 purchased o[ <. 2 eon show =
the Arkansas State Fairgrounds in Little Rock, Arkansas. W-1 paid $700.00 for
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the firearm. MALINOWSKI provided the original box with the firearm during
the purchase. W1 was arrestgd with this firearm by -PD in-2022.

s February 2023: W-1 purchased a Glock, Modél 17GENA4, pistol, at a business
parking lot. W-1 paid $725.00 cash for the firearm. MALINOWSKI provided
the original box with the firearm during the purchase. This was the fircarm W-1
was arrested with by [P olice Department PemmamaEE
only had this firearm for approxjmately_two days prior to being arrested. Present
with MALINOWSKI during this transaction, was a female described as
MALINOWSKI’s wife.

e June 2023: W-1 purchased a Ruger, Model LCP, .380 caliber, handgun from
MALINOWSKI by himself, at the same business parking lot in Little Rock,
Arkansas, fof $120.00. This firearm did not come with a box. W-1 threw the
firearm away because.did not want the firearm. This firearm was never

recovered.

39.  Your Affiant obtained the -report concerning W-1’s arrest. The report detailed W-1

was pulled over during a traffic stop, in which the—pisto], with Serial

Number _was recovered. The firearm was not able to be located in a previous trace through

NTC due to -not routinely submitting trace requests. Your Affiant submitted a trace request through

NTC, which returned the original purchaser in June 2017 to be —H]inois. Your

Affiant contacted -via telephone,'who statcd.did own the firearm, but. sold the firearm to

—possibly in 2019. Your Affiant contacted _ who

provided an invoice where they sold the firearm June 16, 2022, online through gunbroker. The invoice

showed the firearm was shipped to MALINOWSKI with phone number - at—
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The firearm sold for approximately $468.51. ATF Form 4473 for this firearm shoWed the firearm was
transferred to MALINOWSKI on June 23, 2022.

40.  On January 2, 2024, your Affiant made contact with W-1’s mother, who signed a consent
form allowing your affiant to view W-1"s phone. In the phone, your Affiant located contact “Bryan”, with
contact number_ Your Affiant took photographs of the text thread, which is summarized
below:

a. On Saturday, February 4, 2023, starting at 2:27 p.m., W-1 sent a message
addressed to nyan, introducing -and references gettihg Bryan’s number during a
December gun show. There is not another message until Monday, February 13, 2023, starting at
5:05 p.m.. W-1 and MALINOWSKI begin exchanges messages negotiating the sale of multiple
ﬁrearms MALINOWSKI has for sell. MALINOWSKI sends a list of six firearms, (three Glocks
and three AR style guns), which includes AR 15 style 223/.556 caliber pistol for $750.00. W-1
and MALINOWSKI agreed to a sale of a firearm and coordinate meeting at a business parking
lot in Little Rock, Arkansas.

b. A month later, W-1 reaches back out to MALINOWSKI for more firearms.
MALINOWSKI offers several firearms for sale, which includes a Glock, Modei 17 for $725.00.

¢. Months later, W-1 reaches out to MALINOWSKI about additional firearms, and
MALINOWSKI replies with multiple photographs of multiple firearms for sale. W-1 and
MALINOWSKI agree to exchange a Glock, Model 19 for $700.00. There are several text

messages that follow indicating they met for the transaction.

d. Months later, W-1 reached out to MALINOWSKI again for any new firearms for

sell, and MALINOWSKI replied with a list of multiple firearms to sell and prices for each.
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41.  On January 11, 2024, your Affiant was notified that a firearm previously purchased by

MALINOWSKI _pistol, with Serial Number —, was recovered by

the || & - I caiformia.

42. Youf Affiant obtained thel’D report, which detailed on January 3, 2024,"1) Officers
were patrolling near a known park area frequented by Norteno criminal street gang members and
associates. Additionally, a shooting and robbery had taken place the previous night in this area. "D
Ofﬁcers came across a 15-year-old, juvenile Hispanic male. I>D Officers made contact with the juvenile
who then fled and was subsequently arrested while being in the possession of a stolen—
- pistol, with Serial Number_ According to thel’D report, the juvenile is a docﬁmented
Norteno gang member. ATF Form 4473 showed MALINOWSKI was transferred the firearm on May 1,
2022. |

43.  On January 27, 2024, at approximately 9:18 a.m., ATF S/As, acting in an undercover

~ capacity, conducted an undercover purchase of firearms from MALINOWSKI at a gun show located at

Promotions gun show, which is the same promoters of the gun show MALINOWSKI was observed selling
firearms at in June 2023 by S/A- The below observations were made:

a. MALINOWSKI was operating as a vendor, with approximately 2-3 tables by
himself. The tables MALINOWSKI was operatingA had a rack with AR style pistols, two
containers with various pistols, and severai boxes of various types of ammunition. Underneath
the table, were recognizable gun 5ox¢s and other firearms not on display.

b. The first undercover agent approached MALINOWSKI, who began describing

various firearms he had on display. These firearms included pistols manufactured by Glock,
SCCY, and Beret{a. MALINOWSKI further described the AR style pistols as not considered

rifles because they did not have an arm brace on them. MALINOWSKI stated he sells at gun
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shows in Benton (Arkansas), Conway (Arkansas), and at a music hall in Memphis (I'ennessee).
MALINOWSKI stated he sells out of AR pistols, like the ones he had on display, very qufck]y
at the Memphis gun show.

¢. MALINOWSKI stated he was a private seller therefore no paperwork was needed
to be filled out for a purchase. MALINOWSKI stated the customer just haa to be over 21.
MALINOWSKI stated he receives payment via cash, paypal, and zelle.

d. MALINOWSKI agreed to sell the first undercover agent two firearms: 1) F SAAP,
Model FR-16, multi caliber, pistol, Serial Numbef A02715, with one magazine and a éarrying
sleeve, for $725.00, and 2) a Glock, Model 30, .45 caliber, pistol, Serial Number-vith
two magazines and original gun box, for $575.00. The total price for both purchases were
$1,300.00. MALINOWSKI stated several times the FSAAP pistol was new. During the sell, |
MALINOWSKI pulled out another FSAAP jbistol from a wrapper. MALINOWSKI stated this
firearm was brand new and available for sell as well.

B MALINOWSKI agreed to sell a second undercovgr agent a SCCY, Model CPX-
2, 9mm caliber, pistol, Serial NumberJJ R for $325.00.

f.. MALINOWSKI stated the Benton gun show the following weekend is the next
gun show he will be sél]ing at. MALINOWSKI provided his phone number to both undercover
agents who purchased firearms from him, as - MALINOWSKI stated he could be
contacted outside of a gun show for any purchases. When the second undercover agent told
MALINOWSKI he had family and friends who might be interested in purchasing a firearm,
MALINOWKSI replied okay, and made the comment, “Cash, no paper”. During the sale,
MALINOWSKI pulled out an Apple iPhone smart phone to research information concerning a

firearm.
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44, On January 30, 2024, your Affiant received Verizon toll records for number-
- The records showed the account to be active since 2019. The records show there has only been

two (2) devices linked to — an iPhone SE Space Gray 128GB with International Mobile

Equipment Identifier (IMEI)—and International Mobile Subscriber Identity

amsD) [ s in 2019). and an iPhone SE 20 256GB black with IME!
Number | :-c 125t ~ oo S - ing in 2022). IMEL s 2 unique

number to a device. IMSI number is a unique to each cellular si gnal to identify the signal on a cellular
network. Verizon showed subscriber information for the account to be held by Comcast.

45.  OnlJanuary 31, 2024,—reviewed ATF Form 4473 at— for the
three (3) firearms purchased from MALINOWSKI at the gun show on January 27, 2024. The FSAAP,
Model FR-16, was transferred to MALINOWSKI the day prior, on January 26, 2024. The Glock, Model
30, was transferred to MALINOWSKI on December 6, 2023 (approximately 52 days prior to
MALINOWSKI selling the firearm to ATF S/As). An invoice for the Glock, Model 30 was attached,
showing the firearm was purchased from gunbroker.com for approximately $379.59 after taxes and fees.
The SCCY, Model CPX-2, was transferred to MALINOWSKI on December 13, 2023 (approximately 45
days prior to MALINOWSKI selling the firearm to ATF S/As). An invoice for the SCCY, Model CPX-
2 was attached, showing the firearm was purchaéed from'— The invoice showed
two SCCY, Model CPX-2 firearms were for $299.98 combined. The name on the bill to for the invoice

showed Bryan Malinowski, with an address at the SUBJECT PROPERTY, with contact number-

46.  On February 5, 2024, the Affiant received information that a—

-pistol, with | - i been run in -California, by a member of

the -\Jarcoﬁcs and Gang Enforcement Task Force. The Affiant obtained a report which

detailed that on August 2, 2022, a search warrant was conducted on a residence, a vehicle, and-
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-in furtherance of an investigation. Through the search warrant, the_
-pistol, with Serial Number- was recovered from - Additionally, six (6)

bottles of “farmapram alprazolam”, 780.1 grams gross weight of marijuana, another 206.1 grams gross
weight of marijuana, a digital scale, and unused clear zip locks bags were located in the vehicle with

—ad an additional $5,860.00 in US currency on his person. At the residence

searched where—came out of, an additional over 3,500 grams of gross weight marijuana and

another firearm was located. Reviewing ATF Form 4473 for the purchase of the_
-pistol, with Serial Number— MALINOWSKI was transferred the firearm on May 4,

2022 (less than three months before-was arrested with the firearm).
47.  On February 8, 2024, at approximately 11:40 a.m., MALINOWSKI arrived o RN

B ~ 1+ S/As observed MALINOWSKI walking out of | SN o\ding 2 black box.
MALINOWSKI was obsewcd opening the rear driver side door of SUBJECT VEHICLE and putting the
black box inside of the vehicle. MALINOWSKI was observed getting into the driver seat and pull out of
the parking lot, traveling in an eastern direction on — Several ATF S/As attempted to

" follow MALINOWSKI. While following MALINOWSKI, he committed the traffic violations of running
multiple red lights. MALINOWSKI entered Interstate 40 east bound, and simultaneously crossed two
lanes of traffic to céntinue on Interstate 40 east bound. When approaching the intersection of Interstate
40 and Highway 67/167, MALINOWSKI again simultaneously merged across two lanes of traffic to travel
north bound on Highway 67/167. He abruptly merged from Highway 67/167, while crossing the neutral
area of the onramp, onto McCain Boulevard exit ramp. ATF S/As lost sight of MALINOWSKI due to

his reckless driving, and S/As inability to keep up with MALINCWSKI without risking danger to the
safety of other motorists.
48. The area where ATF S/As lost sight of MALINOWSKI, is a high traffic area with lots of
commercial businesses ranging from retail, restaurants, department stores, and self-storage facilities.
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49. At approximately 2:33 p.m., ATF S/As observed the SUBJECT VEHICLE parked in the
Director’s parking space at Bill and Hillary Clinton National Airport, where he works. This parking space
is located in a secured parking lot with access granted through a locked access gate. The parking lot has
signs labelling the area for authorized personnel only. Your Affiant, and other 8/As, do not have vehicular
access to this parking lot, making personal observations difficult. At approximately 5:10 p.m., ATF S/As
observed MALINOWSKI i:ull out and leave the airporf. MALINOWSKI drove straight to the SUBJECT
PROPERTY, where he parked in the driveway. MALINOWSKI did not make any stops between the
airport and his residence. ATF S/As observed MALINOWSKI exit the SUBJECT VEHICLE and go
inside of his residence without carrying any packaging or boxes.

50. Your Affiant checked Arkansas license plate 587ZZZ, which returned to a white 2022 Toyota
Highlander, bearing VIN 5TDDZRBHINS161319 (also known as the SUBJECT VEHICLE). The

vehicle’s registered owner showed to be Clinton National Airport at 1 Airport Road, Little Rock, Arkansas

72202, which is where MALINOWSKI is employed.

82, The_from the area where ATF S/As attempted following MALINOWSKI

on February 8, 2024, showed -on McCain Boulevard and further east on Highway 161 near Bethany

Road. _hc SUBJECT VEHICLE appears in the area of McCain

Boulevard near Landers Road and Highway 161 near Bethany Road, on multiple occasions.
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53. Your Affiant reviewed previous purchases of firearms at — (January 5,

2024, and January 17, 2024), and the SUBJECT VEHICLE had a similar pattern of—
in the same areas_on February 8, 2024.

54. —on January 27, 2024 (the date of the undercover purchase from

MALINOWSKI from the Conway gun show), the SUBJECT VEHICLE was traveling throughout Little
Rock and North Little Rock, Arkansas. Between the times of January 27, 2024, at approximately 9:53
p.m. to January 28, 2024, at approximately 12:26 a.m., the SUBJECT VEHICLE was |||
-in North Little Rock, in Littie. Rock, and again in North Little Rock. The areas in which the
SUBJECT VEHICLE was located -n Little Rock, is an area known to the Affiant. Based
on the Affiant’s background, training, and experience as a law enforcement officer, the Little Rock areas
are known for violent crime, and buying and selling contraband such as firearms and controlled
substances, specifically during the evening and midnight hours. ‘
55. On February 15, 2024, - obtained a tracking device search warrant for the
SUBJECT VEHICLE.

56. On February 20, 2024, the tracking vehicle was successfully installed on the SUBJECT

.VEHICLE.

57. On February 21, 2024, MALINOWSKI purchased three (3) additional firearms from -

-pistoi). S/As surveilled MALINOWSKI from—at approximately 3:30 p.m., until

he arrived back at his residence at approximately 5:44 p.m. During the approximate two-hour span of
time, MALINOWSKI drove in circular patterns in the area of AR-161 (North Little Rock), and Martin
Luther King and Roosevelt Road (Little Rock). MALINOWSKLI’s driving was erratic, often pulling into
parking lots and turning around in the parking to the same direction he was already traveling. Other than
stopping for several minutes at a Sonic located at 2124 AR-161, Nprth Little Rock, AR, MALINOWSKI
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was not observed making any extended stops where he was observed meeting any individuals or getting
out of his vehicle.

58. MALINOWSKI was observed by S/As on several other opcasions, driving in erratic circular
patterns around the same neighborhoods for multiple hours, similar to the pattern observed on February
21,2024. These dates include February 26,2024, February 27, 2024 (the same day he purchased a e

—pistol, with Serial Number -from— and February 28,
2024. B
59. On February 23, 2024, Gunbroker.com provided records via a - subpoena,

concerning user bmalin123, the username from previous gunbroker.com purchases by MALINOWSKI

that were sent to— The records showed numerous of transactions made by

MALINOWSKI on gunbroker.com. The records additionally showed, user -vas registered with
an email address of || | NS - A2t of birth of B - .o phone number of [
-and the SUBJECT PROPERTY, with a first and last name of Bryan Malinowski. There were

no other identifiers on the account, or changes to those identifiers, since March 6, 2020.

60. On March 2, 2024, MALINOWSKI was observed by a S/A operating a table as a vendor at

the G&S Promotions Gun Show, located at the —Arkansas). The
S/A observed MALINOWSKI with multiple handguns for sell, including the —

pistol, with Serial Number-MALINOWSKI has previously purchased approximately four days

prior on February 27, 2024.
61. The tracking device showed the SUBJECT VEHICLE at the gun show on all three days of

the gun show, March 1, 2024, to March 3, 2024. The tracking device showed the SUBJECT VEHICLE

return to the SUBJECT PROPERTY all three days before and after being at the gun show.
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- CONCLUSION

62. To date, MALINOWSKI has purchased over one hundred ﬁfty (150) known firearms between
May 2021 to February 27, 2024. On each ATF Form 4473 filled out for the purchase of each firearm,
MALTNOWSKI has the SUBJECT PROPERTY and phone number -isted. On each
invoice recovered for firearm purchases, MALINOWSKI has the SUBJECT PROPERTY, and phone
number — listed. As of February 27, 2024, approximately six (6) firearms are known to have
been recovered in the commission of a crime, with another three (3) recovered through undercover
purchases by ATF. For each ATF Form 4473, bfor all recovered firearms sold by MALINOWSKI,
MALINOWSKI indicated he was the actual purchaser of the firearms and that the firearms were intended
for him. Each observation of MALINOWSKI, he has been driving the SUBJECT VEHICLE_when

operating as a vendor at a gun show, and when he purchased firearms.

63. 1t has been your Affiant’s experience during my — in law
enforcement as an ATF S/A _that persons who possess firearms, engage in the business

of dealing in firearms without a li_cense, and/or store firearms in their residences, vehicles, and frequently
keep firearms on their person. Unlike many other types of items, these individuals frequently maintain
firearms in their persénal collections for long periods of time, frequehtly for many years, and often have
an emotional attachment to the ownership and possession of these firearms. Their firearms are usually
kept secure because of their value to the possessor. Also, in your Affiant’s experience, firearm owners
also maintain certain documents ana records pertaining to firearms acquisitions and dispositidns, such as
owner’s manuals, receipts, and other documents of ownership of firearms, in their homes anci/or vehicles
for safekeeping, even if they are attempting to circumvent the Federal firearms laws. These documenﬁs
and records, as well as supporting documents relating to purchases, sales, and inventories, such as receipts,
invoices, and photographs, are frequently retained, even if they are evidence of violations of Federal

firearms laws.
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64. = Turther, in your Affiant’s training and experience, persons who engage in the business of
dealing firearms without a license often form information networks to buy and trade for firearms they
cannot acquire from reputable and/or legitimate firearms dealers. Evidence of unlawful firearms
tfansactions is often preserved on computers in e-mail accounts, sent and deletcd e-mails, address books,
contact lists; and attachments to e-mails, including pictures and files. These individuals also often
maintain photographs and detailed descriptions of weapons they have sold or traded.

65. Based on your Affiant’s prior experience with seizure of computers, to include cellular
telephones, in order to properly retrieve and analyze all electronically stored (computer) data, to document
and authenticate such data, and to prevent the loss of the data either from accidental or deliberate
programmed destruction, requires analysis by a qualiﬁedicomputer specialist. To effect such accuracy
and completeness requires the seizure of all computer equipment and peripherals which may be
independent, and the software to operate the computer system and related instruction manuals which
contain directions concerning the operation of the computer system and the software programs. For these
reasons, it is believed that the seizure of the electronically stored data, as well as the computer on which
it is stored, computer equipment, software, hardware, manuals, and other related items will be necessary
to ensure that all relevant evidentiary data is located and seized.

66. Based on the foregoing information, your Affiant believes that concealed within the

SUBJECT PROPERTY (to include the residence, safes, and electronic devices) located at -

_d the SUBJECT VEHICLE, which are further described in

Attachments A1 and A2, are items that constitute evidence, fruits, instrumentalities; and things otherwise
criminally possessed in vjolation of Title 18, USC §§ 922(a)(1)(A) and 922(a)(6). The Affiant further
believes that a search of the SUBJECT PROPERTY and the SUBJECT VEHICLE will result in the
discovery of items that constitute evidence, fruits, and instrumentalities of these violations, specifically,

the items listed in Attachment B.
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REQUEST FOR SEALING

67.  Your Affiant furthef request that the Court order that all bapers in support of this
application, including the affidavit and search warrant, be sealed until further order of the Court.
These documents discuss an ongoing criminal investigation that is neither public nor known to all
of the targets of the investigation. Accordingly, there is good cause to seal these documents because
their premature disclosure may give targets an opportunity to flee/continue flight from prosecution,
destroy or tamper with evidence, change patterns of behavior, notify confederates, or otherwise

seriously jeopardize the investigation.

FURTHER YOU AFFIANT STATETH NOT.

Subscribed and sworn to before me on this é %day of _ MW Ze W , 2024,

¢

~
HON. JOE J. \OLPE
United Sfates Magistrate Judge Eastern District of Arkansas
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ATTACHMENT Al
DESCRIPTION OF THINGS TO BE SEARCHED

o . 0 Rock. Arkensas 72223 (SUBJECT PROPERTY);

2) iPhone SE Space Gray 128GB with International Mobile Equipment Identifier (IMED) Number
and International Mobile Subscriber Identity (IMSI) Number
3i iPhone SE 20 256GB black with IMEI Number ||| 2~d ™S! Number

and

4) Other cellular and electronic devices.

SUBJECT PROPERTY is further described as a split-level residence, with light colored stucco type
siding on the upper portion of the residence and rock finish on the lower portion. The property has a rock
finished mailbox on the curb line just west of the driveway, with the number written in black on a
white block. The driveway runs along the southeastern side of the residence to the garage, that faces east.
The SUBJECT’S PROPERTY is shown below:

Photographs of SUBJECT PROPERY taken February 8, 2024

This warrant authorizes the forensic examination of the phone(s) for the purpose of identifying
electronically stored information described in Attachment B.
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ATTACHMENT A2
DESCRIPTION OF THINGS T0 BE SEARCHED

1) A white 2022 Toyota Highlander, with Vehicle Identification Number (VIN) STDDZRBHONS 161319,
(SUBJECT VEHICLE); and

2) Other cellular and electronic devices located in the SUBJECT VEHICLE to include: an iPhone SE
Space Gray 128GB with International Mobile Equipment Identifier (IMEI Number—
and International Mobile Subscriber Identity (IMSI Number* and an iPhone SE 20
256GB black with IMEI Number “and st Number |

The SUBJECT VEHICLE is shown below:

B -cn March 3, 2024
This warrant authorizes a vehicle search warrant, as well as the forensic examination of the phone for
the purpose of identifying electronically stored information described in Attachment B.

Photograph of SUBJECT VEHICLE
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ATTACHMENT B
INFORMATION TO BE SEIZED

All property, records, and information described in Attachment A that constitutes evidence,
fruits, and instrumentalities of violations of 18 U.8.C. §§ 922(a)(1)(A) and 922(a)(6) including:

a. Firearms, firearm parts and accessories, ammunition;

b. Electronic devices and all internet browsing history, as well as telephonic, text, and electronic mail
messages regarding the unlawful acquisition, transportation, disposition, and/or transfer of firearms;
information regarding the payment(s) for firearms or payment for the acquisition, transportation,
disposition, and/or transfer of firearms; the acquisition, transportation, sale, or distribution of
controlled substances, or the acquisition, transfer, or concealment of assets, money, or proceeds by

~ any means; ‘

¢. All bank records, wire transfer records, bank statements, tax records, tax returns, financial records
and notes, checks, credit card bills, account information, and other financial records;

d. Correspondence, notations, logs, receipts, journals, books, records, and other documents noting
the price, quantity and/or times when firearms or controlled substances were obtained and/or
sold;

e. Any and all address books, telephone records, telephone books, date books, calendars, payment
records, and telephone call logs and other items reflecting names, addresses, and telephone
numbers; '

f. Records reflecting the purchase or lease of real estate, vehicles, or other items, obtained with the-
proceeds from the sale of firearms and related activities;

g. Records of off-site locations to store records, firearms, or controlled substances, including safe
deposit keys, records, receipts, rental agreements for storage facilities;

h. Records of mail and communication services;

i. Mementos, including photographs, and other historical keepsake items which document the
association of co-conspirators, with each other and other suspected associates involved in the
transportation/shipment of firearms, receipt/possession/sale of firearms; or conspiracy to commit
said offenses as well property or assets purchased with illegal proceeds;

j. Lists of sources of supply, customers, and related identifying information;

k. Types, amounts, and prices of firearms and controlled substances, as well as dates, places, and
amounts of specific transactions;

. Text messages and other communications stored on electronic devices relating to the above-
referenced offenses or identification of co-conspirators;

m. Any information related to the co-conspirators, customers, and fences (including names,
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addresses, phone numbers, or any other identifying information);

0. Evidence of user attribution showing who used or owned the cellular telephones or electronic
devices described in Attachment A at the time the things described in this warrant were created,
edited, or deleted, such as logs, phonebooks, photographs, saved usernames and passwords,
documents, spreadsheets, and browsing history; and

o. Evidence regarding the user’s location and all location information that may be obtained from
cellular telephones and GPS devices.

As used above, the terms “records” and “information” include all of the foregoing items of evidence
in whatever form by whatever means they may have been created or stored, including any form of
paper, computer or electronic storage (such as flash memory or SIM cards, or other media that can store
data) and any photographic form. .
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AD 93 (Rev. 11/13) Search and Seizure Warrant

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

for the
Eastern District of Arkansas

In the Matter of the Search of )
(Briefly describe the property fo be searched )
or identify the person by name and address) D) Case No.  4:24sw00062 JJV
Residence located at )
(SUBJECT PROP )
)

SEARCH AND SEIZURE WARRANT

To: Any authorized law enforcement officer

An application by a federal law enforcement officer or an attorney for the government requests the search

of the following person or property located in the Eastern District of Arkansas
(identify the person or describe the property to be searched and give its location). ’
See Attachment A1

I find that the affidavit(s), or any recorded testimony, establish probable cause to search and seize the person or property
described above, and that such search will reveal (identify the person or describe the properly to be seized):

See Attachment B: evidence of violations of Title 18 U.S.C. §§ 922(a)(1)(A) and 922(a)(8).

YOU ARE COMMANDED to execute this warrafit on or before March 20, 2024 (not to exceed 14 days)(
& in the daytime 6:00 am. to 10:00 p.m.  (J at any time in the day or night because good cause has been established. -

Unless delayed notice is authorized below, you must give a copy of the warrant and a receipt for the property taken to the
person from whom, or from whose premises, the property was taken, or leave the copy and receipt at the place where the
property was taken.

The officer executing this warrant, or an officer present during the execution of the warrant, must prepare an inventory -

as required by law and promptly return this warrant and inventory to Joe J. Volpe
(United States Magistrare Judge)

1 Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 3103a(b), I find that immediate notification may have an adverse result listed in 18 U.S.C.
§ 2705 (except for delay of trial), and authorize the officer exccuting this warrant to delay notice to the person who, or whose
property, will be searched or seized (check the appropriate box)

03 for__ days (nortoexceed 30) O3 until, the facts justifying, the later spegi{ic date of
Date and time issued: 03/06/2024 2:43 pm f\\ Qu/’

Judge's signaiure

City and state: Little Rock, Arkansas Joe J. Volpe, United States Magistrate Judge

Printed name and fitle




A0 93 (Rev. 11/13) Search and Seizure Warrant (Page 2)

Return

Case No.: Date and time warrant executed: Copy of warrant and inventory left with:
4:24sw00062 JJV '

Inventory made in the presence of :

Inventory of the property taken and name of any person(s) seized:

Certification

I declare under penalty of petjury that this inventory is correct and was returned along with the original warrant to the
designated judge.

Date:

Executing officer’s signature

Printed name and title




A0 93 (Rev. 11/13) Search and Seizure Warrant

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
for the '

Eastern District of Arkansas

In the Matter of the Search of

)
(Briefly describe the property to be searched )
or identify the person by name and address) ) Case No. 4:24sw00063 JJV
)
)

a white 2022 Toyota Highlander with VIN number
5TDDZRBHINS 161319 (SUBJECT VEHICLE)

SEARCH AND SEIZURE WARRANT

To:  Any authorized law enforcement officer
An application by a federal law enforcement officer or an attorney for the government requests the search
of the following person or property located in the Eastern District of Arkansas
(identify the person or describe the property to be searched and give its location).
See Attachment A2

I find that the affidavit(s), or any recorded testimony, establish probable cause to search and seize the person or property
described above, and that such search will reveal (identify the person or describe the property to be seized):

" See Attachment B: evidence of violations of Title 18 U.S.C. §§ 922(a)(1)(A) and 922(a)(6).

YOU ARE COMMANDED to execute this warrant on or before March 20, 2024 (not to exceed 14 days)
 in the daytime 6:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m.  (J at any time in the day or night because good cause has been established.

Unless delayed notice is authorized below, you must give a copy of the warrant and a receipt for the property taken to the
person from whom, or from whose premises, the property was taken, or leave the copy and receipt at the place where the
property was taken.

The officer executing this warrant, or an officer present during the execution of the warrant, must prepare an inventory

as required by law and promptly return this warrant and inventory to Joe J. Volpe
(United States Magistrate Judge)

(1 Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 3103a(b), I find that immediate notification may have an adverse result listed in 18 U.S.C.
§ 2705 (except for delay of trial), and authorize the officer executing this warrant to delay notice to the person who, or whose

property, will be searched or seized (check the appropriate box)

O for days (ot to exceed 30) - [ until, the facts justifying, the later specific date of
Date and time issued: 03/06/2024 2:43 pm ' \ k\
) q U N Hdge s signature
Little Rock, Arkansas oe J. Volpe, United States Magistrate Judge

City and state:

Printed name and title
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Return

Case No.: Date and time warrant executed: Copy of warrant and inventory left with:
4:24sw00083 JJV ‘

Inventory made in the presence of :

Inventory of the property taken and name of any person(s) seized:

Certification

1 declare under penalty of perjury that this inventory is correct and was returned along with the original warrant to the
designated judge. ' »

Date:

Executing officer’s signature

Printed name and title




IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
EASTERN DISTRICT OF ARKANSAS

IN THE MATTER OF THE SEARCH OF THE
RESIDENCE LOCATED AT Case No. 4:24sw00062 JJV
4:24sw00063 JIV
(SUBJECT PROPERTY) and A WHITE 2022 [Filed Under Seal
TOYOTA HIGHLANDER, WITH VEHICLE
IDENTIFICATION NUMBER (VIN)
STDDZRBH9NS161319, (SUBJECT
VEHICLE)

UNITED STATES' MOTION TO SEAL SEARCH WARRANT,
APPLICATION, AND SEARCH WARRANT AFFIDAVIT

The United States of America requests an order of the Court sealing this Motion, the
Search Warrant, the Application for Search Warrant, the Search Warrant Affidavit, the Inventory
Return, and the Order to Seal, in the above captioned and numbered matter. In making this
request to seal the search warrant papers, the United States relies on the facts and statements set
forth in, or on the face of, all of the search- warrant papers and this motion, including the ‘
Affidavit for the Search Warrant. As set forth in the Affidavit, this matter conéerns allegations of
violations of Title 18, United States Code, Sections Title 18, United States Code § 922(a)(1)(A)
and Title 18, United States Code § 922(a)(6). |

Moreover, the United States submits that the following statements of law are applicable
to this request.

1. The search warrant in the case should be sealed.

The search warrant identifies the property to be searched as it must, and, thus, provides

an easy means by which to identify a potential subject of a criminal investigation. This
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revelation would adversely affect the privacy interests of the potential subjects. Moreover, the
search warrants indirectly reveal information regarding the scope and focus of a grand jury
investigation.

2. The Application for the Search Warrant, and its supporting affidavit, should also
be sealed for a number of reasons.

A. The government has a compelling interest in maintaining the integrity of an
ongoing criminal investigation by denying public access to the details of the ongoing criminal
investigation in this matter. The interest of the United States in this regard has been recognized

by the United States Court of Appeals for the Eighth Circuit. Certain Interested Individuals v.

Pulitzer Publishing Company, 895 F.2d 460 (8th Cir. 1990) (Gunn II); In re Search Warrant for

Secretarial Area Outside Office of Gunn, 855 F.2d 569, 574 (8th Cir. 1988) (Gunn I). The

current investigation is in a critical stage and disclosure of the search warrant application and
affidavit would provide details of the nature, scope and direction of the government's criminal
investigation in this matter. Revelation of this material would not only make it available to the
general public but to the potential subjects of the investigation.

B. The disclosure of the search warrant application and affidavit would expose
the identities of persons who have provided information in connection with this investigation.
The United States Supreme Court has recognized that the government has an important interest
in maintaining the anonymity of persons providing information concerning criminal activity to

law enforcement. McCray v. Illinois, 386 U.S. 300 (1967). Consequently, persons who act as

mere tipsters and who provide information to support a finding of probable cause for the
issuance of a search warrant or an arrest warrant do not have to be disclosed even within the

context of a formal criminal trial. Id. Moreover, those individuals who provide information
Page 2 of 7



which is utilized in an affidavit in support of a search warrant have a legitimate and reasonable
~ expectation that their confidentiality and privacy will be protected by the government. See, e.g.,

In re EveCare Physicians of America, 100 F.3d 514, 519 (7th Cir. 1996); In re Search Warrant

for 2934 Anderson Morris Road, 48 F. Supp. 2d 1082 (N.D. Ohio 1999); In re Search Warrants

Issued on June 11, 1988, 710 F Supp. 701, 704-05 (D.C. Minn. 1989).

| C. Disclosure of the contents of the search warrant affidavit will identify
potential government witnesses. The United States is not even required to disclose the identity
of its witnesses within the context of a criminal trial except under very limited circumstances.
The search warrant affidavit in this case specifically identifies persons who have provided
information in connection with the investigation. If the contents of the affidavit are disclosed,
the identities of these potential witnesses will be revealed, again, not only to the public at large
but to the potential subjects of the investigation.

D. As stated above, this investiggtion is in the pre-indictment stages. No
indictments have been returned and no charges have been filed égainst any person by complaint
or otherwise.

3. The inventory return filed with the Court following the execution of the search
warrant should also be sealed at this stage of the investigation to protect the affected party’s
privacy rights. While the United States is obligated by Rule 41(f), F.R.C.P. to leave a copy of
the warrant and the inventory at the location searched, doing so does not place those documents
in the hands of thlrd persbns, only in the hands of the very person or persons who have a privacy

interest entitled to Constitutional protection.
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As to the privacy iﬁterests set forth above, the Eighth Circuit has recognized that the
privacy interests of the parties affected by the search warrant must be considered. The disclosure
of the contents of the‘search warrant papers could damage the reputations and careers of people
implicated in criminal conduct and could possibly even damage the character and reputations of

innocent third parties prior to the institution of any formal charges. The courts have recognized

that such a result should be avoided if possible. In re EyeCare Physicians of America, 100 F.3d

514, 519 (7th Cir. 1996); In re Up North Plastics, 940 F. Supp. 229, 232 (D.C. Minn. 1996); In re

Search Warrants Issued on June 11, 1988, 710 F. Supp. 701, 704-705 (D.C. Minn. 1989); Gunn

11, supra at 466-67. Under the circumstances, the Court must consider the procedural posture of
the government's criminal investigation in any decision to disclose or seal the contents of the
search warrant papers in this case. Gunn II directly addresses the competirig Constitutional
rights in the release of information regarding search warrants. The government and Pulitzer had
agreed to release the information to the public. McDonnel Douglas and Gunn sought to have the
information sealed because of their right of privacy. The Court stated,

[w]here no indictments have issued against persons allegedly involved in criminal

activity, there is a clear suggestion that, whatever their truth, the Government

cannot prove these allegations. The court of public opinion is not the place to

seek to prove them. If the Government has such proof, it should be submitted to a

‘grand jury, an institution developed to protect all citizens from unfounded

charges. All citizens, whatever their real or imagined past history, are entitled to

the protection of a grand jury proceeding.
Id. at 466. The Court. balanced the two constitutional rights in conflict, the qualified First
Amendment right of access and the qualified Fourth Amendment right to privacy and declared

neither of them absolute. The determining factor for the Court in weighing in favor of sealing

the search materials was the fact that an indictment had not been obtained. - The Court concluded:
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“In sum, we think the pre-indictment status of the government’s criminal investigation tips the
balance decisively in favor of the privacy interests and against disclosure of even redacted
versions of the search warrant affidavits af this time.” 1d. at 467. (emphasis in original).

No Less Restrictive Means are Afaildble

‘General Order 22 requires that the Government address why less restrictive means to
sealing all search warrant documents are not available. Less restrictive meéns may include
redaction of names and personally identifying information, line-by-line redaction of facts and
events, or extraction of excerpts from search warrant documents. Courts have ruled that these
less restrictive means do not édequately protect the interests of the government or individuals in
a number of instances.

First, the Eighth Circuit in Gunn I, explains that “liheaby—line redaction is not
practicable,” noting that “[v]irtually every page coﬁtains multiple references to wiretapped
telephone conversations or to individuals other than the subjects of the search warrants or reveals
the naturé, scope and direction of the government’s ongoing investigation.” 855 F.2d at 574.

Second, less restrictive means are not sufficient to protect privacy interests of individuals
named in the search warrant documents. Courts have held that redaction of individuals names

does not “protect the identities of various individuals due to the context in which they are

mentioned.” In re Search Warrant for 2934 Anderson Motris Road Niles, Ohio, 48 F. Supp.
1082, 1084 (N.D. Ohio 1999). This protection of individuals identifiable through “context” is

followed by the Eighth Circuit in Gunn II. Tn Gunn II, the Eighth Circuit continued to maintain

the seal of the documents in Gunn I, as the privacy interest of individuals named in “even the
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redacted versions of the search warrant affidavits” outweighed the public’s First Amendment
qualified right of access. See Gunn I, 895 F.2d at 466.

Third, less restrictive means of extracting excerpts is not an effective alternative to
sealing the entire document where it contains “détailed, specific information which, if disclosed,

would compromise the ongoing government investigation.” In the Matter of the Search of Office

Suites for World and Islam Studies, 925 F. Supp. 738, 743-44 (M.D. Fla. 1996). In the Matter of

the Search of Office Suite; for World and Islam Studies, the district court found fhat the
affidavits are “designed to support probable cause and each section builds on the next”, and
“Iv]irtually every page of the affidavit contains references to conversations and events, and
reveals the nature and scope of the on-going government investigation, including individuals not
the subject of the search warrant.” Id. ét 744. Further the court found that extraction of excerpts
was inadequate to protect the government’s interests, as “even a portion of the affidavit would
reveal, either explicitly or by inference, the scope and direction of the Government's
investigation.” Id.

WHEREFORE, for each of the above reaéons, the United States respectfully requests that
the Court enter an order which; (1) seals this motion pending further order of the Court; (2) seals
the search warrant, the application for the search warrant, the affidavit in support of the
application, the inventory return, and the order to seal until formal charges have been filed as a
result of the investigation by criminal complé_int or indictment, or until such time as a motion is
made to the Court setting forth why the sealing of the search material is no longer justified Ey the
foregoing reasons.

(END OF TEXT. SIGNATURE PAGE ATTACHED)
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Respectfully submitted,

JONATHAN D. ROSS

Unii}jes Attorne
By: M/

KRISTIN H. BRYANT

AR Bar Number 2009156
Assistant United States Attorney
Post Office Box 1229

Little Rock, Arkansas 72203
Telephone: (501) 340-2600
Bmail: Kristin.Bryant@usdoj.gov
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"IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
EASTERN DISTRICT OF ARKANSAS

IN THE MATTER OF THE SEARCH OF THE

RESIDENCE LOCATED A Case No. 4:24sw00062 JJV
4:24sw00063 JJV

(SUBJECT PROPERTY) and A WHITE 2022

TOYOTA HIGHLANDER, WITH VEHICLE

IDENTIFICATION NUMBER (VIN) Filed Under Seal

5TDDZRBHINS161319, (SUBJECT ‘

VEHICLE) '

ORDER TO SEAL SEARCH WARRANT PAPERS |

The United States of America has filed a motion to seal the Search Warrant, the
Apphcatmn for Search Warrant, the Search Warrant Affidavit, the Inventory Return, its Motion
to Seal this Order, and all other pertinent search warrant papers in the above captioned and
numbered matter. The Court finds that the above described papers should be and they are,
hereby sealed until formal bharges have been filed as a result of the investigation by criminal
compiaint or indictment, or until such time as a motion is made to the Court setting forth why the
sealing of the search material is no longer justiﬁed. The Court finds, as established in the Uxﬁted
States’ Motion to Seal, that there exist compelling interests that outweigh the public’s qualified
First Amendment right of access and, FURTHER, that no less restrictive alternative tb sealing is

appropriate or practical.

A A—

Joe J. Volpe
UNITED STATES MAGISTRATE JUDGE

Dated this 6th day of March, 2024,



